LONDON

VIRTUAL Central &
South Planning

Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 3 MARCH
2021

Time: 7.00 PM

Location: VIRTUAL MEETING

Watch Live Watch a live broadcast of this
meeting on the Council’s YouTube
channel: Hillingdon London

Important Following UK Government advice

Meeting to avoid all but essential travel and

Advice: to practice social distancing, the

’ usual physical public speaking

rights at Planning Committee will be
suspended temporarily during the
coronavirus pandemic. Instead,
written representations will be
considered as part of Hillingdon’s
established Petitions Scheme.

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

Phase I, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Steve Tuckwell (Chairman)

Councillor Alan Chapman (Vice-
Chairman)

Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Mohinder Birah
Councillor Nicola Brightman
Councillor Roy Chamdal

Councillor Farhad Choubedar
Councillor Jazz Dhillon

Councillor Janet Duncan (Opposition
Lead)

Published: Tuesday, 23 February 2021

Contact: Steve Clarke — Democratic Services
Tel: 01895 250693
Email: sclarke2@hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first


https://www.youtube.com/user/HillingdonLondon

Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-8
Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 26-28 Dowding Road, | Uxbridge Change of use of 2 dwellings (Use 9-24
Hillingdon North Class C3) to a building for the
provision of education (Use Class
75328/APP/2020/3570 F1a)
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | 26A Hawthorne West Conversion of roof space to 25-36
Crescent, West Drayton habitable use to include a rear
Drayton dormer and 3 front roof lights

74982/APP/2020/592 Recommendation: Refusal




Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
8 | Rear of 1-3 Colham West Retention and alteration of 4 37 -50

Mill Road, West Drayton shipping containers for office use

Drayton (Use Class E(g)(i)) with associated

parking (Part Retrospective)
52884/APP/2020/2090

Recommendation: Approval

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

That the reports in Part 2 of this agenda be declared not for publication because they involve the
disclosure of information in accordance with Section 100(A) and Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) to the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that they contain exempt information and that the public interest in
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

9 Enforcement Report 51 - 58

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee




This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes &»

Agenda Iltem 3

FHILLINGDON

LONDON

CENTRAL & SOUTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

4 February 2021

Meeting held at VIRTUAL - Live on the Council's YouTube channel: Hillingdon London

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Steve Tuckwell (Chairman)
Alan Chapman (Vice-Chairman)
Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana

Mohinder Birah

Nicola Brightman

Roy Chamdal

Farhad Choubedar

Jazz Dhillon

Janet Duncan (Opposition Lead)

LBH Officers Present:

Meghji Hirani (Planning Contracts & Planning Information)

James Rodger (Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration)
Alan Tilly (Transport Planning and Development Manager)

Glen Egan (Office Managing Partner - Legal Services)

Desmond Adumekwe (Enforcement Manager)

Steve Clarke (Democratic Services Officer)

159. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
There were no apologies for absence.

160. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)
Councillor Brightman declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6 as she had assisted
petitioners in preparing their petition. For the duration of the item, Councillor Brightman
remained muted and her camera was turned off.

161. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 07 January 2021 be
approved as a correct record.

162. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item

4)

None.

Page 1




163.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that items 1-9 were in Part | and would be considered in public and
items 10-15 were in Part || and would be considered in private.

164.

1 RAYNTON CLOSE, HAYES - 8096/APP/2020/3154 (Agenda Item 6)
Two storey side extension and single storey side/rear extension.

For the duration of this item, Councillor Brightman remained muted and her camera
was turned off.

Officers introduced the application and noted that a previous application for a similar
development was refused in February 2020 and an appeal against that decision was
subsequently dismissed. Where the previous application had been refused due to the
width of the two-storey side extension which exceeded the maximum width stated in
the Development Management Policy, the current application had been revised to the
extent by which it fully complied with Council requirements and had therefore overcome
its previous reason for refusal. The application was recommended for approval.

A petition in objection to the application had been received and written representations
from the lead petitioner were read out for the consideration of the Committee. Key
points raised included:

o Petitioners stated that the proposed development would negatively impact the
character and appearance of the site and surrounding area;

e That the plans suggested a possible future House in Multiple Occupation (HMO
as the bedrooms had all been planned with en-suite bathrooms and there was
no primary bathroom. Furthermore, the architect had supposedly suggested that
the downstairs TV room could be adapted into a bedroom further inferring a
potential change of use;

e Raynton Close was a cul-de-sac with existing parking stresses, the proposed
development would put further strain on parking, particularly at school times;

e The proposal, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk, and proximity, would be
detrimental to the amenities of Raynton Close by reason of overdominance,
overshadowing, visual intrusion, loss of light and loss of outlook.

Members were informed that condition six of the officer's report stated that the
development shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling units and would
therefore not become a HMO without further express permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

The Committee questioned the existing vehicle access to the property and the impact
that two dropped kerbs would have on the parking situation in the street. Members
noted that in single dwellings, double parking was deemed acceptable and that the
owners would be required to apply to the Highway Authority for an additional vehicle
crossover. The Committee were informed that the development would have a driveway
with enough space to tandem park two vehicles using an existing dropped kerb, a
further dropped kerb at the front of the property would not be compliant with Council
policies as it would be deemed too close to the junction with Raynton Drive.

The materials and aesthetic of the development were raised with regard to ensuring the

Page 2




property remained in keeping with other developments on the street. Officers informed
Members that this property was outside of any conservation area and, as such, the
materials required for roof tiles and windows would be at the developer’s discretion;
however, there was a condition within the report recommending that the materials used
match those of existing dwelling.

Members noted that the orientation of the property was such that any issues of
overshadowing would fall north which minimised the impact on neighbours. With regard
to the garden area, the Committee queried the amount of private amenity space that
would remain if the development were to go ahead, officers noted that a previously
demolished garage in the back garden had opened up some private amenity space and
that together, the front and back garden areas amounted to over 70 square metres
which complied with amenity space requirements.

Members noted that the roof of the property had a cranked pitch, yet the plans did not
reflect this. Officers noted that an additional condition may be required to show the
design of the cranked pitch on a revised elevation plan. The Committee were minded to
incorporate this into their decision.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed, subject to the additional condition.

RESOLVED:

1) That the application be approved; and

2) That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning to draft an
additional condition in relation to the requirement of new plans to show
the cranked pitch in the property’s roof.

165.

SPITFIRE HOUSE, CHURCHILL ROAD - 585/APP/2020/3892 (Agenda Item 7)

Installation of a rooftop base station to accommodate 6 antenna apertures, 4
600mm dishes, 9 cabinets and associated ancillary development thereto.

Prior to the commencement of this item, Councillor Brightman returned to the meeting.

Officers introduced the item noting that Spitfire House was part of the recent St
Andrew’s Park development which was originally the RAF Uxbridge site. Officers
informed Members were informed that there had been a substantial response to
consultations on the application for the installation of telecommunications equipment on
the roof of Spitfire House. The application was deemed by officers to be unacceptable
for reasons of its prominent positioning and size, which would increase the buildings
height from approximately 14m to just under 20m. Officers also highlighted that a
number of listed buildings were situated opposite to the site, increasing its detrimental
impact.

A petition in objection to the application had been received and written representations
from the lead petitioner were read out for the consideration of the Committee. Key
points raised included:

e That the visual impact of the proposals would be intrusive and out of character
with the local environs;

e That the immediate area was suburban, and the proposed substation would be
seen as incongruously urban for the vicinity;

Page 3




e The development would be unsightly;

e The proposals did not adhere to article BE1 of Hillingdon’s Strategic Plan;

e Residents of the building would be subject to building works, the stress of
potential damage to their building and engineers on the roof of the building.

The agent had also submitted written representations which were read out for the
consideration of the Committee. Key points raised included:

¢ The need for this development was due to the necessary removal of an existing
telecommunications base station on a rooftop at Brunel University; a
replacement mast within a short radius was required to ensure continued
coverage;

e The need for digital connectivity infrastructure was of paramount importance as
demand had shifted from city centres and places of work to residential and
suburban areas;

e The apparatus would have a galvanised-steel finish which would naturally
weather and increasingly assimilate to its background setting over time;

e The operators would support customers and residents by ensuring as little
disruption as possible;

e The continued and enhanced network services which would be brought forward
by the application would greatly outweigh any perceived visual impact that may
be caused by the proposed development;

e EE was to become the Emergency Services Network Provider and would
dedicate the 4G network for Police, Fire, and Ambulance services.

Written representations had also been received from Councillor David Yarrow, Ward
Councillor for Uxbridge North. These were read out for the consideration of Committee
Members. Key points highlighted included:

e Concerns were raised as to construction and engineering personnel accessing
the site at potentially antisocial hours attending to faults or maintenance needs;

e The use of the RAF Uxbridge site was intended for a prestigious housing
development and not for any ancillary facilities;

e The Committee were encouraged to support the officer's recommendation of
refusal.

Before the debate, Members attention was drawn to the published addendum.

The Committee highlighted that the chosen site was not an ideal location for this type
of development, it was residential on all sides and Members agreed that the proposals
were visually intrusive and would increase the buildings height by the equivalent to one
storey, this was seen to give the building an unbalanced aesthetic. Members raised
concerns regarding whether the “galvanised-steel finish” of the telecommunications
equipment would in fact assimilate to its background over time.

The Committee questioned why, seeing as the existing telecommunications equipment
at Brunel University needed to be removed and re-sited close by, alternative sites on
the Brunel campus had not appeared to be considered by developers.

Members noted the prominent position of the building, adjacent to Hillingdon Road and
opposite from a number of listed buildings; the Committee were minded to strengthen
refusal reason one to include reference to the visual impact upon the listed buildings
opposite. Officers informed the Committee that this would require the inclusion of

Page 4




reference to policies that come with listed buildings and heritage sites, and as such, the
wording of the strengthened refusal reason should be delegated to the Head of
Planning; Members agreed to this.

With regard to refusal reason two, Members were minded to expand the reference to
the properties opposite Spitfire House on Churchill Road to include numbers 2, 4, 14,
16 and 18, and to also include reference to the properties on Lacey Grove, to the rear
of Spitfire House.

The officer's recommendation, with the additions discussed and agreed by Members,
was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED:

1) That the application be refused;

2) That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning to expand
upon the wording used for refusal reason one to include the listed
buildings opposite Spitfire House; and

3) That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning to expand
upon the wording used for refusal reason two to expand the reference to
neighbouring properties on Churchill Road and Lacey Grove.

166.

56B WOOD END, GREEN ROAD, HAYES - 54624/APP/2020/4303 (Agenda Item 8)

Erection of two rear dormer window and 3 front rooflights following full removal
of the existing unlawful dormer window.

Officers introduced the item and informed the Committee that the application was a
revised version of a previous application that had been refused by the Committee in
March 2020. An appeal against that decision was dismissed in October 2020. It was
also noted that the site was within a conservation area and that the Conservation
Officer had objected to the impact that the proposal would have on the conservation
area.

Members expressed concerns that there had been minimal improvement from the
proposals previously brought before the Committee and noted how the development
overlooks and dominates the front view of houses on Albion Road. It was deemed not
sufficiently subordinate and not in keeping with the architectural composition of the
original dwelling.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

167.

HAYES PARK, HAYES - 12853/APP/2020/2980 (Agenda Item 9)

Internal office refurbishment of Hayes Park Central and South including removal
of the non-original partitions, re-instatement of the South Building's reflecting
pool and refurbished entrances. External elevation and roof refurbishment of
both buildings including cleaning and repair works, replacement of non-original
glazed double doors and other works to the South building's glazed curtain wall
system (Application for Listed Building Consent).

Page 5




Officers introduced the application and noted that the two buildings in question were
grade II* listed and important to the heritage of the Borough. It was further noted that,
due to current coronavirus restrictions, there were no photographs of the internal
elements of the building.

The Committee praised the work of officers with regard to the assessment of the
development and were encouraged to see proposals for many of the unique original
features to be restored within the buildings.

Members concurred with the officer's recommendation which was moved, seconded
and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

168.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 10)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual
concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest
in disclosing it.

169.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 11)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual
concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest

Page 6




in disclosing it.

170.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda ltem 12)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual
concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest
in disclosing it.

171.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 13)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual
concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest
in disclosing it.

172.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda ltem 14)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual

Page 7




concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest
in disclosing it.

173.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 15)
RESOLVED:

1) That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, was
agreed; and,

2) That the Committee resolved to release their decision, and the reasons for
it outlined in the report, into the public domain, solely for the purposes of
it issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual
concerned.

This item is declared as exempt from publication as it involves the disclosure of
information in accordance with Section 100(A) and paragraphs 1, 2 & 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12 (A) to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that the report
contains information relating to any individual, information likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and information relating to any action taken or to be
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest
in disclosing it.

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.46 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Democratic Services on Telephone 01895 250636 - email
(recommended) democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 8




Agenda Iltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 26-28 DOWDING ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Change of use of 2 dwellings (Use Class C3) to a building for the provision of
education (Use Class F1a)

LBH Ref Nos: 75328/APP/2020/3570

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
Block Plan (1:500)
Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Screenshot 2020-10-20 at 11.53.09
Proposed First Floor Plan (Screenshot 2020-10-20 at 11.52.56)
Transport Statement
Existing and Proposed Ground Floor Plans
Existing First Floor Plan
Proposed First Floor Plan

Date Plans Received: 22/10/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2020
1. SUMMARY

The current application seeks planning permission for the change of use from C3
(Dwellinghouse) to Use Class F1a a small independent school. A supporting statement
from the Ministry of Defence has been submitted with the submission as follows:

"l am writing in support of the application for change of use for the above property. The
property is currently held by the MOD on a long-term lease from Annington Homes Ltd
which has 175 years remaining until expiry.

The property was converted by the MOD some years ago into a nursery and the
conversion work involved knocking through and creating a single building. Regretfully
detailed records regarding the date of when this work was completed are not available, but
work was completed after 1996.

In order to bring the property back into use the MOD has reached an agreement in
principle with the Red Balloon Learning Centre to enter into a sub-lease to use the
property as a specialist learning centre for the therapeutic educational provision for 20
young people aged between 11-17 who have undergone traumatic life experiences such
as abuse, bereavement or bullying.

The MOD currently does not have a requirement for the property for residential use nor do
we have the ability to terminate the head lease with Annington as this lease requires the
MOD to terminate a minimum of twenty properties which we are unable to do.

This provisional arrangement is therefore considered the only viable option and is an
opportunity of bringing the property back into effective occupation rather than it remain
empty and we support the application for change of use."

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would result in the loss of the existing residential units, which are suitable
with or without adaptation for residential use and would thus result in the diminution of the
Council's existing housing stock to the detriment of the future housing needs of the
borough. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy 3.14 of the London Plan
(2016).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development by reason of its use as an independent school for the number
of people proposed, would result in a significant increase in noise and general disturbance
to nearby residential properties, and as such would constitute an un-neighbourly form of
development, resulting in a material loss of residential amenity. Therefore, the proposal
would be contrary to Policy 7.15 of the London Plan (March 2016), Policy EM8 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policy DMHB 11
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January
2020).

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development fails to provide sufficient on-plot parking resulting in
substandard car parking provisions, leading to undue on-street parking demand to the
detriment of on-street parking capacity and public/highway safety contrary to Policies DMT
1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (January 2020) and Policies 6.3 and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by reason of its design and layout fails to provide a property which meets
the requirements of people with disabilities and would therefore give rise to a substandard
form of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenity of future occupiers. The
proposal is thus contrary to Policies 7.1 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2016).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The application site comprises a pair of semi-detached dwelling houses located on the
east side of Dowding Way. They are set under a hipped roof and have external brick facing.
They are set back from the highway and by 6 m with a landscaped frontage. Although no
dedicated parking there is a lay by to the front of the dwellings providing parking spaces for
five vehicles. The surrounding area is residential in character comprising two storey semi-
detached dwellings

3.2 Proposed Scheme
The current application seeks planning permission for the change of use of 2 dwellings

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



(Use Class C3) to a building for the provision of education (Use Class F1a).

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
No relevant planning history

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Development Plan

1.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

1.2 The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2020)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019,
issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



statement of reasons for the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to
accept. The Secretary of State responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was
exercising his powers under section 337 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct
that modifications are required.

On 9th December 2020, the Mayor wrote to the Secretary of State to advise of his intention
to formally approve a new draft London Plan, which included his best understanding of the
modifications required. The Secretary of State responded on 10th December 2020
requesting that the draft London Plan was re-submitted with more specific amendments to
address the 11 previous Directions and 2 additional Directions. On 21st December 2020,
the Mayor formally approved a new London Plan, the 'Publication London Plan'. This has
been submitted to the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has 6 weeks to respond
or can request a further extension of time. The Mayor can only publish the Plan after the
Secretary of State has given approval.

More limited weight should be attached to parts of draft London Plan policies where the
Secretary of State has directed specific amendments. Greater weight may be attached to
policies that are not subject to the specific amendments from the Secretary of State

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Part 2 Policies:

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMCI 1A Development of New Education Floorspace

DMCI 2 New Community Infrastructure

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP 3.14 (2016) Existing Housing

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2016) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.15 (2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic

environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

16 neighbouring properties and the local residents association were consulted by letter dated
24/12/2020. The consultation period expired on 17/1/2021.

Five written representations have been received together with a signed petition objecting to the
proposal summarised as follows:

1. Loss of privacy
2. Noise pollution
3. Exacerbation of parking

4. Increased through traffic

5. Safety & security

6. Out of character within a residential street

7. Potential abuse and anti social behaviour

8. Potential of objects being thrown

9. Financial impact on house prices

10. Potential affect on current medical conditions

Officer response - Concerns Nos.1 to 6 raised above will be addressed within the body of this
report. The remaining concerns Nos. 7 to 10 are not material planning considerations.

Internal Consultees
Planning Policy:

Development Plan

1.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance
with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

1.2 The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following
documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

Material Considerations

1.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies
1.4 Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the
weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this Framework (the
closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that
may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2019)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March 2018 with
the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The Plan was subject to
examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated Draft Plan with amendments
was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State issued their
report and recommendations to the Mayor on 8th October 2019.

The Mayor has considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on 9th December 2019, issued to
the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a statement of reasons for
the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor did not wish to accept. The Secretary of State
responded on the 13th March 2020 and stated that he was exercising his powers under section 337
of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 to direct that modifications are required. These are set out
at Annex 1 of the response; however the letter does also state that if the Mayor can suggest
alternative changes to policies that would address the concerns raised, these would also be
considered.

More limited weight should be attached to draft London Plan policies where the Secretary of State
has directed modifications or where they relate to concerns raised within the letter. Greater weight
may be attached to policies that are not subject to modifications from the Secretary of State or that
do not relate to issues raised in the letter.

Designations - Principle of Development
Loss of Housing

The Draft London Plan (December 2019) Policy H10 and H8 states that the loss of existing housing
is generally only acceptable where it is replaced by higher density residential units than what is
already existing. The Council aims to safeguard existing residential accommodation as stated in The
Local Plan Part 2 Development Management Policies - Policy DMH 1: Safeguarding Existing
Housing. Although, where there is at least an equivalent amount of residential floor space in
replacement of the existing dwelling, we can support the loss of the existing building. The Council
will also support subdivisions of dwellings, only if there are minimum car parking standards met on
the curtilage of the site.

The redevelopment should be better quality and provide an equivalent level of affordable housing
floor space. Where possible, regeneration of a development should deliver an uplift in affordable
housing. However, the proposal is a change of use to a Category F1a small independent school. It
should be taken into account that the building has been vacant for quite some years prior to the
present time and there has been no use of the site. From this, we should assess whether it is
appropriate and viable to change the use of the site to provide an independent small centre for 20
young people, aged 11-17 year old who have gone through traumatic life experiences - rather than

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



keep the site as vacant.
Change of Use to a Class F.1 a Small Independent School

Policy S1 of the London Plan 2019 enforces that boroughs should ensure that the social
infrastructure of London's diverse communities is met. There should be a needs assessment
conducted where relevant stakeholders and the local community should altogether consider whether
there is a need for a small independent school, specifically for the purpose of catering for 11-17 year
old and efforts made towards teaching them through their trauma and life experiences. Furthermore,
Policy S3 of the London Plan states that the needs assessment should include an audit of existing
facilities, where these are located and if there is a demand for it in another location.

The Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies Policy Cl1 also sets out that Hillingdon will support the
development of new schools and facilities and it requires development to contribute to the provision
of community facilities to meet the needs of the community. The London Borough of Hillingdon will
measure the success of Policy Cl1 through addressing the needs identified in Hillingdon's Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment.

Boroughs should seek to provide high quality, inclusive social infrastructure that supports local
needs particularly for young people in education and the need to deliver a high-quality service which
is inclusive of mental health issues. When assessing whether a development is appropriate, the
impact of providing the service should be taken into account. For example, this learning centre will
cater for 20 young people in a residential area, so it should determine all aspects of the service and
if there are any factors regarding the surrounding street and area itself.

The Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies Policy DMCI 1A sets out criteria of which
proposals of new schools will be assessed against. The assessment of the new education floor
space should consider the size of the school and its location to public transport, the local highway
network and its ability to accommodate school trips without compromising highway safety to
students, as well serving walking cycling routes to school. The assessment should also consider
the suitability to accommodate a new school, the impact it would have on green open space and on
amenity space (it should have sufficient outdoor space).

The proposal in this application suggests that there will only be a change of use from the current
vacant building and there will be no additional floor space created. As the proposal is for a small
independent school, it will only accommodate facilities and a teaching environment for this number
of pupils. There is outdoor garden space which is sufficient for this small number of pupils attending
and will be able to host any of their outdoor activities. The school would be in close proximity to
Uxbridge Town Centre with a PTAL rating of 1a and is also served by the main highway routes;
Honeycroft Hill to the north and Hillingdon Road to the west of the site. This shows that the location
would be suitable following the criteria set in Policy DMCI 1A in the LPP2.

The proposal of the new development will not have additional floor space and it also sets out that
there will be no signage or exterior design to the building, which means it will be kept in harmony with
the existing street scene and there will be no impact on neighbouring buildings or the surrounding
area. Policy DMHB 11 in the LPP2 suggests that all development should incorporate good design
principles and ensure the high quality finishes and that the internal layout maximises sustainability
and is adaptable for different activities, as has been shown in the plans attached to the application.

School Place Planning Project Manager Residents Services commented as follows:

Red Balloon
Hillingdon Education officers strongly support this application for Red Balloon Centre in Uxbridge to
serve 20 young people aged 11-17 at a time. There is no similar provision in Hillingdon and

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



education officers know there are pupils who would benefit, who are waiting for a place in this type of
short-term support. Currently, four Hillingdon resident young people are attending the Red Balloon
centre in Harrow and others have attended it in the past.

There are now 17,000 students aged 11-17 in Hillingdon secondary schools, so up to 20 pupils at a
time is a tiny fraction - but this type of small-group education and support in a more secluded
residential setting is vital and life changing for those who need it.

Red Balloon provides a tailored offer of intensive education support and therapy for between 2-6
terms, for those who find it too difficult to cope in mainstream schooling due to a traumatic life
experience such as abuse, bereavement or bullying. Some of the young people may have an
education heath care plan, none are pupils who have been excluded from school. The aim is to
enable them to return to mainstream school (or to finish GCSCEs if they are mid-way through), or to
move on to further education, training or work. Red Balloon have a proven approach, with 100%
success in reintegration over the past three years or successful sustained moves into post-16
provision.

It is likely that places in the proposed centre would be commissioned by officers in the Special
Education Needs team or the Virtual School team for pupils who are looked after children, and also
directly by some schools for short-term placements for their pupils. There is greater demand than
can be met at present in Harrow (and that journey is not practical or some young people in
Hillingdon) so a new centre in Hillingdon in a quiet location is ideal.

Please refer to the relevant sections within the body of this report for other internal consultee
comments.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) states that A) The net loss of existing self-contained housing, including affordable
housing, will be resisted unless the housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential
floor space.

Policy DMCI 1 outlines that the Council will support the retention and enhancement of
existing community facilities.

Policy DMCI 1A states that proposals for new schools and school expansions will be
assessed against the following criteria: A) The size of the site, its location and suitability to
accommodate a new school or school expansion taking account of compatibility with
surrounding uses, and existing planning policy designations (e.g. conservation areas, MOL,
Green Belt).

Policy DMCI 2 also outlines that the Council will support proposals for the provision of new
community facilities where they are located within the community/catchment that they are
intended to serve.

New Community Infrastructure Provision

7.6 The provision of appropriate community facilities and inclusive access to such facilities
is a prerequisite for the proper functioning of any community. The Council is committed to
supporting continued provision and where necessary, expansion of social and strategic
infrastructure and cultural facilities to meet the needs of the Borough's residents.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



7.7 Development/redevelopment of social and strategic infrastructure should be designed
to meet the needs of their intended occupants, taking into account any appropriate
regulations and national design and space

standards. New development should not unduly harm residential amenity, the environment
or transport infrastructure in line with all the policies in this document. They must also be
appropriate for their surroundings in terms of scale, character and mix of uses.

7.8 Facilities that are located in close proximity to the community they serve and have good
public transport accessibility, achieve a number of benefits. They reduce the need to travel
longer distances, encourage more sustainable modes of transport and help to engender a
sense of ownership of the facility by the community. In turn, this contributes to climate
change mitigation, improved public health and well being, and community cohesion.

Correspondence submitted from the Ministry of Defence would indicate that this building is
currently vacant but that prior to this current situation, it was converted to use as a nursery
in the late 1990's although there is no planning history to confirm this. Existing floor plans
submitted with the application indicate that although there are two separate entrances both
the ground and first floors of both properties are connected and can be accessed as one
building but remains residential in nature and falls within Use Class C3 (Residential).

The applicant has not provided information regarding the current state of the residential
units which are proposed to be lost and do not claim that the properties are unfit for
habitation. As stated within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) an exception to Policy DMH 1 can be made if the dwelling is unfit for
habitation within the meaning of the Housing Act 1985 and is incapable of being brought up
at a reasonable cost. The Housing Act 1985 states that a dwelling is unfit for purpose if it is
in a bad condition, there is a serious problem with damp, there is not enough natural light or
ventilation, there are water supply issues and if there are drainage issues.

The applicant do not claim that the properties are unfit for habitation but that the loss of the
residential units should be allowed on the basis that:

"The MOD currently does not have a requirement for the property for residential use nor do
we have the ability to terminate the head lease with Annington as this lease requires the
MOD to terminate a minimum of twenty properties which we are unable to do.

This provisional arrangement is therefore considered the only viable option and is an
opportunity of bringing the property back into effective occupation rather than it remain
empty."

The leasing arrangements between the MoD and Annington is not a good planning reason
to allow the loss of scarce residential units, given the shortage of such units within the
Borough and across London. There is also a concern that, if approved, this would result in
a strong precedent for other units with similar leasing arrangements to be converted to
non-residential use resulting in a further loss of residential units.

Subsequently, it is considered that the applicant has failed to provide sufficient information
and evidence to demonstrate that this case could be considered as an exceptional
circumstance which would warrant the loss of residential units. Therefore, the proposal is
unacceptable, in principle.

Consequently the proposal would result in the loss of the existing residential units, which

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

are suitable with or without adaptation for residential use and would thus result in the
diminution of the Council's existing housing stock to the detriment of the future housing
needs of the borough. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy 3.14 of the
London Plan (2016).

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2019) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy 7.1 of the London Plan states that "design of new buildings and the spaces they
create should help reinforce or enhance the character, legibility, permeability and
accessibility of the neighbourhood".

Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states, "Development should have regard to the form,
function, and structure of an area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of
surrounding buildings. It should improve an area's visual or physical connection with natural
features. In areas of poor or ill-defined character, development should build on the positive
elements that can contribute to establishing an enhanced character for the future function
of the area".

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires that all new development achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings,
alterations and extensions'. Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) advises that all development will be required to
be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(January 2020) states that: A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new
buildings, will be required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate
principles of good design including: i) harmonising with the local context; ii) ensuring the
use of high quality building materials and finishes; iii) ensuring that the internal design and
layout of development maximises sustainability and is adaptable to different activities; iv)
protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and undesignated, and their settings; and v)
landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

The proposal is for the change of use from residential to Class F1a as a small independent
day school and as there will not be any external alterations there will no adverse impact on
the street scene.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 B) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in terms of loss
of light, loss of outlook, sense of dominance and loss of privacy.

New Community Infrastructure Provision

7.7 Development/redevelopment of social and strategic infrastructure should be designed
to meet the needs of their intended occupants, taking into account any appropriate
regulations and national design and space standards. New development should not unduly
harm residential amenity, the environment or transport infrastructure in line with all the
policies in this document. They must also be appropriate for their surroundings in terms of
scale, character and mix of uses.

No external alterations or extensions are proposed however, the use could give rise to
potential adverse affects on the amenities of the neighbouring properties within this
primarily residential area.

With regards to the impact on neighbouring residential amenity, the proposal is for a
therapeutic day school for 20 young people. No further information on the use is provided,
but it is presumed that the proposal includes the use of the rear gardens for
playground/recreation. The site is surrounded on all sides by residential properties and is in
a secluded and quiet location. Its use as a school, including the comings and goings and
the use of the rear areas, allied to the number of pupils proposed would result in a
significant increase in noise and disturbance to nearby residential properties, and as such
would constitute an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a material loss of
residential amenity. Therefore, the proposal would be contrary to Policy 7.15 of the London
Plan (March 2016), Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (January 2020).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Highways Officer commented as follows:
Site Characteristics & Background

The address consists of a pair of semi-detached 3-bedroom dwellings located within a
residential MOD housing estate catchment in Uxbridge. The applicant states that the
address has been utilised as a child nursery but no further detail has been provided. It is
proposed to convert the two dwellings to a small school F1(a) use class for 20 'troubled’
teenagers and 8 FTE staff in attendance operating during weekdays only between the
hours of 8.30am to 4.30 pm.

There are no direct on-plot parking provisions but 4-5 perpendicular spaces front the
dwellings on what is un-adopted private (MOD) highway. 2 of the said spaces are included
within the submitted 'red-line' site boundary and would be dedicated to the proposed use.
The unadopted status applies to Dowding Road in its entirety which does not exhibit any
parking controls and is relatively narrow in width. The site address exhibits a low public
transport accessibility level (PTAL) rating of 1b which is considered as very poor which
therefore heightens dependency on the use of private motor transport.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Parking Provision

Local Plan: Part 2 Policy DMT 6 requires that new development will only be permitted
where it accords with the Council's adopted parking standards unless it can be
demonstrated that a deviation from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on
the surrounding road network.

Assessment related to parking provisions (including vehicular trip generation) for F1
(formally D1) planning use classes is undertaken on a 'case by case' basis via a transport
assessment and travel plan.

The applicant states that 20 pupils (ages 11-17) would attend the address during weekdays
only between the hours of 8.30am to 4.30 pm. Given the age demographic which is unlikely
to generate use of private motor transport by patrons, it is highlighted that attendees would
usually arrive by 'shared' taxi funded by this borough's educational services. This would
result in approximately 4 taxis dropping off and picking up at staggered periods during the
morning and afternoon respectively. The two dedicated parking spaces on the frontage
(within the red-line site boundary) would be utilised for this purpose reverting to general
parking provisions for the local and immediate community outside of the above-mentioned
weekday operational hours.

8 'FTE' staff are indicated and there are no specific parking allocations presented for this
aspect of the proposal. Although the applicant states that staff would not be allowed to park
on-site, it is considered that the poor PTAL rating is likely to encourage some private car
use which would potentially generate several cars parked in the vicinity as a result.

The surrounding residential properties are predominantly devoid of on-plot parking facilities
which places parking burden on the roadway thereby reducing on-street parking capacity
which would potentially give rise to a conflict in demand if the proposal proceeds. As the
applicant has not provided any detail or evidence with regard to the level of present on-
street parking demand and whether any spare capacity exists which could satisfactorily
accommodate parking displacement generated by the proposal, the default position is a
refusal on insufficient on-plot parking grounds as private car dependency generated by the
proposal is likely to be high due to the very poor PTAL rating which can potentially result in
undue loss of on-street parking provision for local residents and injudicious parking
displacement onto the unrestricted public highway. Understandably the Council has a duty
of care to prevent such eventualities wherever possible.

Vehicular Trip Generation

Local Plan: Part 2 Policies DMT 1 and DMT 2 require the Council to consider whether the
traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway
and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

It is considered that as the dominant 'taxi' bound mode of attendance by students is
realistic, the level of this mode of activity combined with staff attendance is anticipated to
be marginal in traffic generation terms and therefore does not raise any specific highway
concern or objection.

Cycling Provision
In terms of cycle parking there should be a provision of at least '1 secure and accessible

space per 10 staff or students' in order to conform to the adopted minimum borough cycle

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



parking standard. 3 spaces are therefore required and cycle racks are proposed. However,
no detail is presented hence this aspect should be secured via planning condition.

Conclusion
Refusal on insufficient on-plot parking grounds is recommended as follows:-

"The proposed development fails to provide sufficient on-plot parking resulting in
substandard car parking provisions, potentially leading to undue on-street parking demand
to the detriment of on-street parking capacity and public/highway safety contrary to Local
Plan: Part 2 Development Plan (2020) Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies 6.3
and 6.13 of the London Plan (2016).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Access officer commented as follows:

This proposal to convert two existing dwelling houses into an independent school has been
assessed with reference to the 2016 London Plan and its contained policy 7.2, as well as
the obligations on the Local Planning Authority to give due regard to its Equality Act 2010,
Public Sector Duty.

The existing dwelling houses are considered to be inaccessible to wheelchair users,
however as there Use Class would change if granted permission, and as alterations to the
internal are proposed to allow its use as a school, then the opportunity must be taken to
make the building as accessible as a reasonably practicable for a disabled pupil using a
wheelchair.

If the council is to approve this proposal, the following provisions should be secured on a
revised set of plans:

1. The proposed plan does not currently include any WC provision for disabled people and
at least one accessible unisex toilet should be provided. The accessible toilet should be
designed in accordance with the guidance given in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations 2010 (2015 edition).

2. Level or suitably ramped access should be detailed on a dedicated scale drawing of
1:50, to include ramp width, handrail detail, intermediary landings, top and bottom landings,
and intended gradient.

The following Informative should be attached to any approval:

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within
the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to
take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

Conclusion: revised plans should be requested prior to any approval
7.12 Disabled access

As discussed above
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The issue of noise has been discussed above. There are no air quality implications.
Comments on Public Consultations

The concerns raised following public consultation have been addressed within the relevant
sections of this report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

This application seeks the change of use of the building to provide educational facilities and
would result in the loss of residential units. In addition it would be harmful to the
neighbouring amenity and the local highways network. For the reasons explained in this
report, the application is recommended for refusal

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2

The London Plan (2016)

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Diane Verona Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



GROAD -

WDIN

e i

DO

1to5

Douglas
Court

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

26-28 DOWDING ROAD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

HILLINGDON N . )
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
75328/APP/2020/3570 1:1,250 ;}%
Planning Committee: Date: i
Central & So@tye 24 | February 2021 THLL INOGDON




Agenda Item 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 26A HAWTHORNE CRESCENT WEST DRAYTON
Development: Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 3 front
roof lights

LBH Ref Nos: 74982/APP/2020/592

Drawing Nos: BC/PP/2230-00 Rev. A
BC/PP/2230-01 Received 14-01-2021
BC/PP/2230-02 Received 14-01-2021
BC/PP/2230-04 Received 14-01-2021
BC/PP/2230-03 Received 14-01-2021

Date Plans Received: 20/02/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/02/2020
1. SUMMARY

The proposal involves the conversion of the roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer and 3 front roof lights.

It is considered that the proposed rear dormer window by reason of its size, scale, bulk
and design will create a top heavy appearance harmful to the design of the dwelling and
character of the area

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed rear dormer window, by reason of its size, scale, bulk, and design would fail
to harmonise with the architectural composition of the original dwelling and would be
detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the street scene and the
surrounding area. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies DMHB 11 and
DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(January 2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London
consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2016).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

4 171 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Refusing)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the Local
Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.
The Council has, however, been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the
application as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and
negotiation could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a recently developed detached two storey dwelling located
off the Southern side of Hawthorne Crescent and accessed through a narrow pedestrian
footpath. The site is adjacent to the end-of-terraced dwelling at No. 26 Hawthorne
Crescent.

No.26 forms part of a terrace of five properties, which are modern in appearance and are
similar in character to other properties in the immediate locality. To the South of the site are
the rear gardens of residential properties on Kings Road; to the West, the site abuts an
adopted footpath beyond which is Edison Close and immediately to the East of the site
(across the pedestrian footpath) is the rear garden of the end-of-terraced dwelling at No. 28
Hawthorne Crescent. The dwelling is now substantially completed.

3.2 Proposed Scheme
Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 3 x front roof lights.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

44222/APP/2012/234 26 Hawthorne Crescent West Drayton

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL TWO BEDROOM ATTACHED HOUSE TO THE
EXISTING BUILDING

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



Decision: 24-02-2012 NFA

44222/APP/2016/304 Land Adjacent To 26 Hawthorne Crescent West Drayton

Two storey, 2-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space

Decision: 25-04-2016  Approved

44222/APP/2017/1594 Land Adjacent To 26 Hawthorne Crescent West Drayton

Two storey, 2-bedroom, detached dwelling with associated amenity space. 44222/APP/2016/30
Conditions(s) CONDITION NO 3, 4, 5 AND 9.

Decision: 29-06-2017 NFA

74982/APP/2019/2447 26a Hawthorne Crescent West Drayton
Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 1 x additional front rooflic

Decision: 17-09-2019  Withdrawn

74982/APP/2020/1720 26a Hawthorne Crescent West Drayton

Single storey outbuilding to rear to be used as a shed (part retrospective)

Decision: 15-07-2020 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

44222/APP/2017/1810 - Two storey, 2-bed detached dwelling with parking and amenity
space on land adjacent to No. 26 Hawthorne Crescent. Approved. Condition 08 removed
permitted development rights.

74982/APP/2019/2447 - Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer
and 1 x additional front rooflight. Withdrawn on grounds that dwelling was not substantially
complete.

Officers comments: The dwelling is now substantially complete. Although scaffolding
remains, the main structure is complete with only windows and doors to be installed.

74982/APP/2020/1720 -Single storey outbuilding to rear to be used as a shed (part
retrospective). Refused.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the
following documents:

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)
West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) is also a material consideration in
planning decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Emerging Planning Policies

Paragraph 48 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local
Planning Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:
(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

Draft London Plan (Intend to Publish Version, December 2019)

The GLA consulted upon a draft new London Plan between December 2017 and March
2018 with the intention of replacing the previous versions of the existing London Plan. The
Plan was subject to examination hearings from February to May 2019, and a Consolidated
Draft Plan with amendments was published in July 2019. The Panel of Inspectors
appointed by the Secretary of State issued their report and recommendations to the Mayor
on 8th October.

The Mayor has considered the Inspectors' recommendations and, on the 19th December
2019, issued to the Secretary of State his intention to publish the London Plan along with a
statement of reasons for any of the Inspectors' recommendations that the Mayor does not
wish to accept.

Limited weight should be attached to draft London Plan policies that have not been
accepted by the Mayor or that have only been accepted in part/with significant
amendments. Greater weight may be attached to policies that were subject to the
Inspector's recommendations and have since been accepted by the Mayor through the
'Intend to Publish' version of the Plan. The weight will then increase as unresolved issues
are overcome through the completion of the outstanding statutory process. Greater weight
may also be attached to policies, which have been found acceptable by the Panel (either
expressly or by no comment being made).

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:
DMHB 11 Design of New Development

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on 24/02/2020. By the end of the notification period three individual
objections were received together with a petition with 22 valid signatures. In summary the following
objections and comments were made:

) The proposal is over-development of the site/the proposals are in place.

) Intended be used as a HMO, therefore resulting in insufficient local parking
) Increased overlooking/loss of privacy

) Potential harm to a tree subject to a TPO.

) Failure to complete a retaining wall to rear of No.9 Kings Road

)

(1
(2
(3
(4
(5
(6) Damaged fence not made good.

Officer comment: The issues raised are considered below.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

The Highways and Traffic Officer has expressed concern regarding lack of car parking. An
amended plan has been submitted which makes it clear that the off site car parking remains as per
the original planning permission for the dwelling.

Trees and Landscape Officer:

This site is occupied by a recently built two-storey end of terrace house in Hawthorne Crescent.
While there are no notable landscape features within the site, there is a protected ash tree, T1 on
the schedule of TPO 778, in one of the back gardens of Kings Road, which over-sails the side
garden of number 26A. No trees will be affected by the proposed extension in the roof space, which
is all within the existing footprint of the building.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection and no need for landscape conditions

Contaminated Land Officer - no objections
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is a dwelling to which extensions would be acceptable in principle, subject to
compliance with the Council's policies and standards.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) Policy DMHD 1: Alterations
and Extensions to Residential Dwellings states:

A) Planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of dwellings will be required
to ensure that:

i) there is no adverse cumulative impact of the proposal on the character, appearance or
quality of the existing street or wider area;

ii) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings is achieved;

iii) new extensions appear subordinate to the main dwelling in their floor area, width, depth
and height;

iv) new extensions respect the design of the original house and be of matching materials;
v) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers;

vi) adequate garden space is retained;

vii) adequate off-street parking is retained, as set out in Table 1: Parking Standards in
Appendix C;

viii) trees, hedges and other landscaping features are retained; and

ix) all extensions in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, and to
Listed and Locally Listed Buildings, are designed in keeping with the original house, in
terms of layout,scale, proportions, roof form, window pattern, detailed design and
materials.

E) Roof Extensions

i) roof extensions should be located on the rear elevation only, be subservient to the scale
of the existing roof and should not exceed more than two thirds the average width of the
original roof. They should be located below the ridge tiles of the existing roof and retain a
substantial element of the original roof slope above the eaves line;

ii) the Council will not support poorly designed or over-large roof extensions including
proposals to convert an existing hipped roof to a gable;

i) raising of a main roof above the existing ridgeline of a house will generally not be
supported;

iv) all roof extensions should employ appropriate external materials and architectural details
to match the existing dwelling; and

v) in Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local Character and on Listed and Locally
Listed Buildings, roof extensions should take the form of traditional 'dormer' windows, on
the rear elevation, to harmonise with the existing building. The highest point of the dormer
should be kept well within the back roof slope, away from the ridge, eaves or valleys, whilst
each window should match the proportions, size and glazing pattern of the first floor
windows.

Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) paragraph A1.20 states -
The design of roof extensions should not create a dominant 'top heavy' appearance out of

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



proportion with the rest of the building. It should be lower than the height of the main ridge
and sit well above the eaves and away from the roof's hips and valleys. As a guide, new
roof extensions should not cover more than a third of the main roof.

Paragraph A1.21 states - A dormer window should be no larger in size than those on the
first floor and comprise an individual window and roof. This is preferable to a roof extension
and will be required in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character. Only
rear roof extensions and rear dormer windows will be considered acceptable.

Paragraph A1.23 states - No direct overlooking will be permitted. Adequate distance should
be maintained to any area from which overlooking may occur. Regard should be given to
the character of the area and the distances between buildings but as a guide, the distance
should not be less than 21m between facing habitable rooms and windows and 24m from
window to patio to window. However, in these situations where the distance between
existing houses already breaches this distance, any new development should not result in
any additional overlooking.

The proposed dormer window is set lower than the height of the main ridge and sits above
the eaves and away from the edges of the roof. However, it will cover more than two thirds
the width of the main roof and its design, with windows which are much larger than those
on the first floor results in a development which creates a dominant and top heavy
appearance and is out of proportion with the rest of the building.

The front roof lights are small and proportional to the main roof, however, the proposed rear
dormer window, by reason of its size, scale, bulk, and design would fail to harmonise with
the architectural composition of the original dwelling and would be detrimental to the
character, appearance and visual amenities of the street scene and the surrounding area.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed dormer window is rear facing looking towards Edison Close with the flank
wall of No. 2 being the closest at approximately 18 metres to the rear of the dwelling. The
proposed dormer window faces towards No. 2 but at an oblique angle. There are no
habitable room windows on this side of the dwelling. No. 28 Hawthorne Crescent is a
similar distance away from the front of the application dwelling containing the roof lights but
also at an oblique angle. Any potential views will be of the front of No. 21. No other property
is within 21 m of the development.

Paragraph A1.23 of the Local Plan states that no direct overlooking will be permitted.
Adequate distance should be maintained to any area from which overlooking may occur.
Regard should be given to the character of the area and the distances between buildings
but as a guide, the distance should not be less than 21m between facing habitable rooms
and windows and 24m from window to patio to window. However, this is a situation where
the distance between existing houses already breaches this distance and in such cases
any new development should not result in any additional overlooking. Part of the rear
dormer includes a bathroom and the window can be obscure glazed. The front roof- lights
are high level and at an oblique angle to the rear of No. 28 Hawthorne Avenue. Overall it is
not considered that the development will lead to a material increase in overlooking or loss
of privacy.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The roof level accommodation creates an additional bedroom and an on-suite bathroom.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



7.10

7.11

712

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

The bedroom is well lit by the dormer window and the three rooflights and forms an
appropriate living standard for future occupiers.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Hawthorne Crescent is a quiet residential road with no on street parking restrictions. The
site is located at the end of a pedestrian walkway with no identifiable vehicle access. The
application proposes no changes to the public highway or pedestrian facilities in the area.
The proposed development will convert a two bedroom property to a three bedroom
property in an area with a PTAL of 2 (poor). There appears to be no off street parking
associated with the development. There is a concern that no parking has been considered
for the new development. Due to the location of the site the provision of a parking space
may not be possible. Before a decision can be made further details are required in regard
to access to the development by all modes but in particular by vehicles, walking and
cycling, by the applicant. There are currently objections to this application on the grounds of
insufficient information.

Urban design, access and security

No urban design or security issues are raised. Access issues are dealt with above.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

While there are no notable landscape feaures within the site, there is a protected ash tree,
T1 on the schedule of TPO 778, in one of the back gardens of Kings Road, which over-
sails the side garden of number 26A. No trees will be affected by the proposed extension in
the roof space, which is all within the existing footprint of the building.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Houses in Multiple Occupation, including those which fall within Class C4 benefit from the
permitted development rights granted to dwellinghouses by the GDPO. Class C4 use is
defined as use of a dwellinghouse by not more than six residents as a "house in multiple
occupation. Any occupation beyond 6 persons would require express planning permission.
No Certificate of Proposed use had been received. In relation to the concurrent application
for the shed set out in the Planning History, the agent has confirmed that that is not to be
used as part of an HMO or as a bedroom. The application gives no intention or suggestion
to use the dwelling in this manner and it would be inappropriate to consider any planning
implications against the current proposals.

Retaining wall - this was not a matter considered under the determination of the parent
planning permission and there are no relevant conditions.

Damaged fence - this is a private matter between the relevant parties.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



All planning matters raised are considered within the body of this report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal involves conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer
and 3 x front roof lights.

It is considered that the proposed rear dormer window by reason of its scale and design
will create a top heavy appearance harmful to the design of the dwelling and character of
the area

11. Reference Documents

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
The London Plan - Consolidated With Alterations (2016)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) .

Contact Officer: Cris Lancaster Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



El
DISON CLOSE

-

KINGS ROAD

Lo
N

Coppinger

T St
EE
" [ce)
OOenB%
R EE .
ONeumm
B o
NH_‘nnH.m,.m:mu w
OH..mmmu Nm
DFsa,mv &%@ lm
P Sa £
ORP.mA_nU =
o ok :
-
< .mm H
= O
o
T N
o
o 2|
7 N
N - W
AL
3 |18 |& 8
CE & S &
EY —
Z &
(m)] S S
2 gl 2
—
st | & 2
3= :
AW s S
S |5
.. H -.%P MW
’ < 3a £ 2
S & 55 15 £
© A2 2 8
< 2§ X
2 .m9 o @
: EX|E
c C
M [
)
_ o
> gEs
z . 2ED, §
g mwmus :
S mw.mmm : m
3 mmaw% : &8
LEfde 3 =
() W.nHSn g dw
< n%emna .%M.dS
. w .‘mbumnmv\./w.mumw
n as..mw.wudmw.tn
MayS%Appma
.-nlv- AHhAHWDedWH.nnu
o mw.mp,mA ¥
doumsm{\emoo
Z b cue.@8mnc03
Sa.hlvr8 2 £8
_.nru..mewwm%ﬁmon/_
Tm&oamwmwm
§358288
e©.ﬁ|um




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address REAR OF 1-3 COLHAM MILL ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Development: Retention and alteration of 4 shipping containers for office use (Use Class
E(g)(i)) with associated parking (Part Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 52884/APP/2020/2090

Drawing Nos: 2020-1CMR-COU-2 Rev.
2020-1CMR-COU-3 Rev.
2020-1CMR-COU-4 Rev.
2020-1CMR-COU-5 Rev.
2020-1CMR-COU-6 Rev.

1
1
1
1
1
2020-1CMR-COU-1 Rev. 1

.0
.0
.0
.0
.0
.0A

Date Plans Received: 07/07/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/07/2020
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the retention and alteration of 4 shipping
containers for office use (Use Class E(g)(i)) with associated parking (Part Retrospective).
The proposal is considered acceptable on visual grounds and would not result in an
unacceptable loss of amenity to neighbouring occupiers. Furthermore the proposal would
not have a detrimental impact upon highway safety.

The application is recommended for approval.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers2020-1CMR-COU-2
Rev. 1.0, 2020-1CMR-COU-4 Rev. 1.0, 2020-1CMR-COU-5 Rev. 1.0 and 2020-1CMR-
COU-6 Rev. 1.0 and and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2016).

2 COM22 Operating Hours

The premises shall not be used except between 0800 and 18.00, Mondays - Fridays and
1000 to 1600 Saturdays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

3 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



Within three months of the date of this decision a landscape scheme shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB
14, DMEI 1 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4 COM12 Use Within Same Use Class

The premises shall be used for office use within Use Class E(g)(i) and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in Class E of the Schedule to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987) as amended.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)
The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DME 3 Office Development
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMT 2 Highways Impacts
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2016).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

4 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan
Part 1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other
informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order
to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application
which is likely to be considered favourably.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located to the South of Nos. 1-3 Colham Mill Road, which are two
storey properties with small rear gardens and to the West of the retail properties on Station
Road, also two storey. To the South of the site lies No. 4 and 4a, which are semi-detached
bungalows. The site comprises former derelict land on a 350 sq.m plot with three garages
used for storage. Access to the site is via Colham Mill Road. 4 containers have been
placed on the site.

The site has a PTAL rating of 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the retention and alteration of 4 shipping
containers for office use (Use Class E(g)(i)) with associated parking (Part Retrospective).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

52884/APP/2000/429 Land At Rear Of 2 And 3 Colham Mill Road West Drayton
ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY BLOCK OF FOUR GARAGES

Decision: 01-12-2000  Approved

52884/APP/2016/1978 Rear Of 1-3 Colham Mill Road West Drayton

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



2-bed detached bungalow with associated parking and amenity space.

Decision: 19-09-2017 Refused Appeal: 16-10-2018 Dismissed

52884/PRC/2015/195 Land At Rear Of 2 And 3 Colham Mill Road West Drayton

2 x 2 bedroom, two storey dwellings

Decision: 03-03-2016 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History

It is noted that planning permission was refused under application reference
52884/APP/2016/1978 for the erection of a 2-bed detached bungalow with associated
parking and amenity space for the following reasons:-

1. The proposal, by reason of its size, bulk, and proximity, with inadequate separation
distances between the proposed dwelling and the existing properties at 2 and 3 Colham Mill
Road, would result in an overly dominant, visually intrusive and an un-neighbourly form of
development, resulting in a material loss of residential amenity. Therefore the proposal
would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2. The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street
parking/manoeuvring/access arrangements would be provided, and therefore the
development is considered to result in substandard car parking provision, leading to on-
street parking/queuing to the detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to policy
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(November 2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards as set out in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal would result in the provision of habitable rooms with very poor levels of
outlook and light to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016).

4. The proposed building would constitute a cramped form of development, largely filling
the space to the 1-3 Colham Mill Road which would result in the closing of an important
gap characteristic to the area and would be visually at odds with the predominant
character, appearance and scale of buildings within the surrounding street scene and
would thus be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan
and the council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

An appeal was subsequently dismissed which is discussed in the sections below.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DME 3 Office Development

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
25 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 22.7.20.

7 letters of objection have been received raising concerns relating to:

1. The area was supposed to be used for over-flow parking for the cafe

2. The additional parking and office use will detract from highway safety and congestion in a busy
area

3, Concerns about health and safety

4. Concerns whether the building complies with building regulations

5. Development out of keeping with the character of the area

Officer note: The planning issues are addressed in the sections below. It is also noted that the
application site does not have an authorised use for parking in connection with the cafe.

The application has been referred to Committee by the Ward Councillor who has raised the following
concerns:

1. That the building is out of character with the street scene and surrounding area.
2. That it results in a loss of amenity space to adjoining residential properties.
3. That it encourages 'backland" commercial development.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

This is a part retrospective application for retention of four containers and change of use from car
parking to office use with associated car parking. The site is behind shops in West Drayton Town

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



Centre and access via dropped kerb and alleyway from Colham Mill Road. The site is currently used
as an informal car parking but with minimal vehicles parked in this location, it is felt there would be
limited, if any displaced parking which would impact on the restricted highway network. There are no
highway objections to this application.

Landscape Officer:

This site is occupied by an area of open space behind 1 Station Road, which is accessed via a
service road off Colham Mill Road. The aerial photograph from 2008 indicates that part of the space
was hard surfaced and used for parking and part laid to grass. Since then the photographs indicate
that the use has varied with the whole site laid to tarmac between 2015 and 2019. There are no
trees and no TPQO's or Conservation Area designations affecting the site.

COMMENT: There is no objection to the proposal to keep the containers and parking in this space
subject to tree planting or other landscape in the site corners/boundaries to improve the relationship
with adjacent residential properties. The colour/condition of the containers is not known, however, if
necessary they should be painted a recessive colour, such as 'invisible green', to reduce their visual
impact when viewed from outside the site.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection subject to conditions COM9 (parts 1, 2 and 5).
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site lies within an established developed area. It has no known lawful use, but would
appear to have been used as parking, which was not related to the surrounding properties,
and had a number of structures/garages on it.Given this situation it is considered that there
would be no objection in principle to the office use of the site, subject to all other material
planning considerations being acceptable.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy 7.1 of the London Plan states that "design of new buildings and the spaces they
create should help reinforce or enhance the character, legibility, permeability and
accessibility of the neighbourhood".

Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states, "Development should have regard to the form,
function, and structure of an area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of
surrounding buildings. It should improve an area's visual or physical connection with natural
features. In areas of poor or ill-defined character, development should build on the positive
elements that can contribute to establishing an enhanced character for the future function

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



of the area."

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that All development, including extensions, alterations and new
buildings will be required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate
principles of good design including: i) harmonising with the local context by taking into
account the surrounding: - scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of
adjacent structures; - building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street
patterns; - building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps
between structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;
architectural composition and quality of detailing; local topography, views both from and to
the site; and impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment. ii) ensuring the
use of high quality building materials and finishes; iii) ensuring that the internal design and
layout of development maximises sustainability and is adaptable to different activities; iv)
protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings; and v)
landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

The proposal is for 4 containers which have a footprint of some 58 sq.m with a maximum
height of 2.7m, adjacent to the southern boundary wall which measures 2.3m in height. It
is considered that the containers do not appear prominent within the street scene and do
not detract from the visual amenities of the area.

it is noted that the Inspector in the 2018 appeal decision stated:-

"The appeal building would be experienced in this context. It would be of a comparable bulk,
scale and footprint with the existing bungalows and it would have a similar amount of
amenity space. The proposal would also have space about it, being set some 3.6 metres
away from the western boundary and 1 metre from the southern boundary. Although it
would develop an otherwise open parcel of land, due to the proposed layout, height and
overall scale, the proposal would respond successfully to the character and appearance
established by the existing bungalows rather than the 2 storey frontage development.

26. | therefore conclude that the proposal would not harm the character and appearance of
the area."

It is concluded, in light of the Inspectors previous comments, which are a material
consideration, and the fact that the containers are not prominent additions to the street
scene, that the proposal would not unacceptably detract from the character and
appearance of the locality in accordance with the requirements of Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Policy DMHD 11 of the Hillingdon Local plan -
Part Two (2020).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development proposals should not adversely impact on the
amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

The previously refused scheme sought permission for a bungalow measuring 4m in height.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



Numbers 2 and 3 Colham Mill Road have relatively short rear gardens at a depth of
approximately 6.5m. Whilst the proposed bungalow was proposed to be sited 1m off the
rear boundary of these properties, a flank to rear separation distance of approximately 7.5-
8 m would have been achieved between these properties. It was considered that the
erection of a detached bungalow, measuring 4m in height, at a distance of just 7.5 m away
from the rear elevations of numbers 2 and 3 Colham Mill Road, would have resulted in an
un-neighbourly form of development resulting in an unacceptable loss of light and outlook.
This view was supported by the Inspector at appeal which was dismissed on amenity
grounds.

The current proposal differs from the appeal proposal in that the containers are sited along
the southern boundary of the site achieving a minimum separation distance of 12m. Given
the reduced height of the containers, 2.7m as opposed to 4m and the increased separation
distance, it is considered that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable loss of light,
outlook or privacy. The applicant confirms the hours of use are 08.00-18.00 Monday to
Friday and 10am-16.00 on Saturdays. It is considered reasonable however, to impose an
hours of use restriction to ensure that the occupants of nearby properties does no suffer an
unacceptable level of noise and disturbance resulting from the proposed office use.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy DMT 2: Highways Impacts states:
Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the Council's
standards;

ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety of
all road users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrian are
satisfactorily accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management schemes;
iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic by the
most direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and access
roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of
capacity and functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or through
junctions which are at capacity.

Policy DMT 6: Vehicle Parking states:

A) Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in Appendix C
Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues relating to
congestion and amenity.

The Council may agree to vary these requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion or local amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is in
accordance with its recommendations.

B) All car parks provided for new development will be required to contain conveniently
located reserved spaces for wheelchair users and those with restricted mobility in
accordance with the Council's Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



711

712

713

714

The Council's Highway Officer has confirmed that the site is behind shops in West Drayton
Town Centre and access via dropped kerb and alleyway from Colham Mill Road. The site
is currently used as an informal car parking but with minimal vehicles parked in this
location, it is felt there would be limited, if any displaced parking which would impact on the
restricted highway network. There are no highway objections to this application.

It is noted that in connection with the application for the detached dwelling on the site, the
Council previously raised concerns with regard to substandard car parking provision,
leading to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of public and highway safety. The
Inspector however stated:

"The Council suggest that the lack of suitable off-street parking spaces would give rise to
on-street car parking and queuing which would be to the detriment of public and highway
safety. However, this is not supported by any objective evidence. No car parking surveys
have been provided to demonstrate that demand for on-street car parking exceeds supply
and there is no evidence to suggest that existing on-street car parking is causing highway
or public safety concerns.

15. The proposal may result in cars being parked on the road. However, based on the
evidence that | have before me, | am not satisfied that a lack of parking provision will
automatically give rise to safety concerns. | observed on my site visit that there are parking
restrictions in the area and | note that the Highways Officer states that this is to allow the
free flow of traffic. These restrictions would prevent cars being parked in inappropriate
locations and whilst this may have an effect on the convenience of parking for future
occupants, there is nothing in the evidence before me to suggest that this would be to the
detriment of highway safety. 16. | therefore conclude that whilst the proposal would fail to
provide suitable off-street car parking, this would not be to the detriment of public and
highway safety."

The Inspector's findings, whilst in association with a proposed residential dwelling, are
considered to reinforce the Highway Officers comments in relation to parking and highway
safety.

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No accessibility concerns are riased.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Policy DMHB 14: Trees and Landscaping requires:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees,
biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes
hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and
enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

C) Where space for ground level planting is limited, such as high rise buildings, the
inclusion of living walls and roofs will be expected where feasible.

D) Planning applications for proposals that would affect existing trees will be required to
provide an accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread and species of trees.
Where the tree survey

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

identifies trees of merit, tree root protection areas and an arboricultural method statement
will be required to show how the trees will be protected. Where trees are to be removed,
proposals for replanting of new trees on-site must be provided or include contributions to
offsite provision.

There is no objection to the proposal to keep the containers and parking in this space
subject to tree planting or other landscape in the site corners/boundaries to improve the
relationship with adjacent residential properties. A landscaping condition is proposed.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

No noise or air quality issues are raised.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Given that this application is for the retention of the 4 shipping containers for office use,
should members refuse the application, then the matter would be the subject of a separate
enforcement report to a future committee.

Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the retention and alteration of 4 shipping
containers for office use (Use Class E(g)(i)) with associated parking (Part Retrospective).
The proposal is considered acceptable on visual grounds and would not result in an
unacceptable loss of amenity to neighbouring occupiers. Furthermore the proposal would
not have a detrimental impact upon highway safety.

The application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)
The London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



STATION APP

The De Burgh
Arms Hotel

1t0 28
Pullman

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary REAR OF 1-3 OF HILLINGDON

For identificat | COLHAM MILL ROAD Residents Services

or identification purposes only. Planning Section

This copy has been made by or with WEST DRAYTON Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . T . .

Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:

Act 1988 (the Act). 52884/APP/2020/2090 1:1,250 %@g\v

Unless the Act provides a relevant %

exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database

fights 2020 Ordnance Survey Central & Scbe 49 | February 2021|  THILLINGDON




This page is intentionally left blank



STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION Agenda Item 9

Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6a, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 3rd March 2021

www.hillingdon.gov.uk




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 26-28 DOWDING ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Change of use from 2 dwellings (Use Class C3) to a building for the provision
of education (Use Class F1a)

LBH Ref Nos: 75328/APP/2020/3570

Drawing Nos:

Date Plans Received: 22/10/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2020

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



+ Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

26-28. Dowding Road, Uxbridge, Hillingdon, UB10 ORH

Z—

FA0ADS -

|
t
DOWDI

Sita Plan shows area bounded by: 506658.35. 184060 92 506800 77, 184201 75 (at a scale of 1.1250), OSGridAet. TQ 6738413, The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of

way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary
Produced on 30th Moy 2020 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision avallatle at this date. Reproduction in whole or part is prahibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. @ Crown copyright 2020, Supplied by www buyaplan co.uk a licensed Ordnance Survey partner {(100053143). Unigue plan reference: #00575669-396282

Ordnance Survey and the OS5 Symbol are registerad trademarks of Ordnance Survey. the national mapping agency of Graal Britain  Buy A Plan logo, pd! design and the waw. buyaplan co.uk website

are Copyright € Pass Inc Lid 2020

Page 61



r Buy A Plan

UK's Fastest and Easiest Planning Site

26-28, Dowding Road. Uxbridge, Hillingdon, UB10 0RH

-4
|
L
|
|
|
[
jl
@

G ROAD

= |
N | | | \ / |
= | Ly O .-
= 15 B 7 R It
o= | B Py F i | is
a ne = S [ 1
- | JI_ = .
B | ‘ o

——

o | oo
.’r F |
i B r
/ '
_l‘
\. |
/ 43 B0
J | =
p. Y, Pres f i
7 7
y. / / | S
W i o = | f
P i < =~ |
Wi - £ 7 - !
s = "‘ P — = A
Vs L v J i J.
b L 7 / v e /
Ballire 4 4 i
- ™ -Jg
3 // A% , / =4 R : ) / /
\ J; ;i /:/ ] ~ / = (%:
e =4 N\ . 2 ,'
/-,—\/ o // i\ e T |
= 4 : { f
[ ~ B
. /

= : . _

/

e e _
A g ol 1 3 \ - . - / ) A ;
.- \ \ 2 \ \ 4 ! 5 —_— ¥ Sy
3 : \ W, \ \ od A
\ - \ = .
- - y
\ { “ / / =l
’ = \ \ " 2 2 N i f./ / __/
=t \ i \ \ 4 ,‘/ y ’;_,\- /
— \ o \ ; / / / ).
om | 10.0m . 200m ) \ ~ A \
e — — e —— == \ T 6738413 '@ Crown copyright and dalat rights me Survey 100053143

Block Plan shows area bounded by 508885.08, 184086 03 506775.06, 184176.03 (at a scale of 1:500), OSGridRef TQ 6738413, The representation of a road, track or path Is no evidence of a right of
way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a property boundary.
Produced on 30th Nov 2020 from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporaling surveyed revision avallable at this date. Reproduction In whale or part is prohibited without the
prior parmission of Ordnance Survey @ Crown copyright 2020, Supplied by www buyaplan co.uk & licensed Ordnance Survey pariner (100053143). Unigue plan raference: #00579658-249173

Ordnance Survey and the 05 Symbol are registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping agency of Greal Britain. Buy A Plan logo, pdf design and the www buyapian co.uk website

are Copyright © Pass inc Ltd 2020

Page 62



i ot 1

Ty H g e e g ——

IS 001 ) ehTx8L7 G8-£%b27 | ILExgg-g |ShexgL2 _
W o= W | 2 Wy | WOoR®y | T woCaogy f@owéw |

| »

*

“ L = 2 : t
= % / 7
- K“ “Q { |
< 1 |
4 JA ‘.. . f ﬁ

A b9-g *13°7 N
L = swoopng N[ om ]

A~ }
A !

i
| s e E L} .“.M/.v |
L Sl 8 e U I = WL NETE T P e 4mh.m =

OO US| ANFFHD
a3y bNniemoa 92/97

Page 63



08 00|

CQ\..UC&U_
—t

R Ea e Mo A

] 29-S* b4 mwamx b2 #
WIDOS NO| (1903 WA D 62_}4

j

o

~
\
\
L

07-2x882 £8L*LO L
INBHLLEY & Woeg DNIA T

ey,

ﬁmwwo%,u& it

3 ] .Halll u —
v 3 Z\ L T——_ -L(,\J.h.vnul.)..‘.\. T ——r

=
LNPPRNY) TOOTd AN
QAyon bniamog £2)92

Page 64



s oo

W s WD

repa—

O Sam——

e iy o s e ey

| gLz

Moy RML T weoy gy DY eI Wer Ay |

ey

e — e

CoLssgge 4 ALexgge | emeraez |

Page 65



Page 1 of 1

[ ctric Distribution Boar:
|Gas Meter
vt ar
n c=c=2 = Water Stopeoc
co cio
H: 211 HZ
. wee W
©:1005 C:783 C:iT33 3 =R ]
I 2001 W24 W24 X 22
W EE: i w120 Wi 134 T wies
2 e gD

Dining Room
428x3868

Z418]

Ground Floor
Key

sameiz  COMMUNity room Office

#2101 = Head hedght above FFL

Page 66

http://Ibh-planora01:8081/documentviewer/viewdocument?file=D%3A%5CData%5C... 15/02/2021



Page 1 of 1

¢ =Cupboard
Up { Dn = Direstion of Stairs
St = Store u [
suss English
=~ =Eletiric Distribution Board
(cs = Gas Meter exa I ' l
Waer = Wilater Meter roo m

Storage

.. [storage
Staff toilet = i3 a‘g

Wo48a W AT
IL*‘
e
H:1

Wellbeing
room

Bedoom4 =
278x 243

First Floor

| Therapy
room Science Artroom room

roor-,

4 4 3/5 0 P

Page 67

http://Ibh-planora01:8081/documentviewer/viewdocument?file=D%3A%5CData%5C... 15/02/2021



G ROAD

DO

I .
WDIN

1t05

Douglas
Court

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2020
100019283

Ordnance Survey

Site Address:

26-28 DOWDING ROAD

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

HILLINGDON - . .
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
75328/APP/2020/3570 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date: (1
Central & So@tlye 68 | February 2021 TRl L PON




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 26A HAWTHORNE CRESCENT WEST DRAYTON
Development: Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 3 fron
roof lights

LBH Ref Nos: 74982/APP/2020/592

Drawing Nos:

Date Plans Received: 20/02/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/02/2020

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



ev | ezgsedeq| o00g /05211 _ oleos 92GY ¥1G8 020 Xed  O¥GY $/G8 0Z0IBL Al LEN .x%__\,_»,__gsom ;.s%mem_u oyl 62-12
: 17 dIHSHIANLUVd TIONVE Jo BUlM Ul Jussuoo
00 - 0€22/dd/0g oN Bumeiq By 3noyym ped U Jo Ajloym Jauye ‘uosiad pastioyineun Aue o
pasojosip 10 paulejal ‘paanpoidal ‘paidod jou si
020220 -a1eQ Ueld soolg gds zan gd6 2gn | = uepenssisi Bumerp aus pue weus Aq pons
N I d . uolfeuq 1sep uolkeuq 1sepn dIHSHANLYEV TIONVE Jo Ausdoid oy s| Bumesp siyL
beoclo Pappe fiepunog Bupued 120 | v dd kg paxosyo ue|d uoieoo | Jueosai) suloymeH Y9z JUS0S3ID) BUIOYMEH YOZ
sjeQ uoisinay | Aey N “Koeinooe Jiauy Jof uavye}
ar g umeig “Aluo 20uEpING 10j 918 BUIMEIP SIU} UO PSjeoIpUI
‘suoisiney ’ el Jleyeq JuaND 'ssalppy a)iS "ONIMYAA SIHL WO¥4 3T¥OS LON 0a
3JIS U0 payLIaA 8q 0} SUoISUBWIQ
SlIBIN 0G oL 0 SIIBIN 00L 0§ oL 0
0¢ S 0c¢ ]
00S:} 9|eds 06¢Cl:| eds
ue|d %o0|g ue|d uoijeao

AvON sN33|

H

AQv0y 350101139

Page 70




ov | -om1s 10deg 00LL _ . 925 7158 020 Xed  9vSy $/G8 020 19L ATl LEN XPPIW ‘llELinos ‘Aempeosg ayL 62-12 arl
- ‘oN Buimesq 17 dIHSHAN 1MV 119NV Jo bupua uluesuos | dIHSHIAN LYV
10 - 0€2e/dd/og ! o oy e ut o Aloun 2wy ‘uosiad pasiouneun fue oy | 7] _ O NVY4
pasoosip o paulejal ‘paonpoidal ‘paidod jou si ) Jey) UolIPUc
0202/20 e)eq suonens|3 mczm_xm ad6 2an gde 29N ay) uo panss| s| Bumelp ay) pue way) Aq pamsasal st Jybukdon
: o ai
) uojhelq sepm uojheid 1sop dIHSHINLYVd 1INV Jo Auadoid auy st Bummelp siyL
dd kg pawoayo sueld Joo|4 Bunsixg | Ju89saI) BUIOYMEH YOZ JUB0S81D SUIOUMEH Y9Z Q
g uoisiney | ey -orInooe Jiay} Joj uaxe) si Auliqisuodsal oN -1
ar :Ag umeiq “Ajuo souepinb loj a1 Bumelp siy} Uo pajedipul seale Auy Q
‘suoIsIney b T HIEIEIa U] o) $SaIppPY BYUS 'ONIMVHA SIHL WO¥4 FT¥OS LON 0Q
3)IS U0 paylIaA aq 0} suoisuaLlIq
o|m I | I {
gl
o=
SIS 0L S 4 3 0 =3
. A wooupag
T ) 004 87
ola %
-
I
o
; g S
154
00l:L-®|eds 00lL:1-9|eos %
=}

uoneAs|3 apig bunsixg uoneAs|3 Jeay bunsixy

v

=

0O

00L:L:8[eos 00L:1:9]eos

uoneAs|3 epig Bunsixg uoneAs|J juoiq Buisixg

[ oo T [ [ T

00l :1:8]eos

ue|d 1004 punolis) Bunsix3

woolyjeg

wooipag

BuiAr]

BuIuIg / USYNM

Page 71




. OZGY 7158 020 XBd  9¥SGY #2G8 020 19L  ArL LEN ‘XPPIN ‘lleUInoS ‘Aempeoig 8yl 62-22 an
- ‘o B o5 L7 dIHSHANLMVd 119NV jo bunim urussuoo | dIHSHINLAV
20 - 0€22/dd/0o8 ON buimelq ‘a3 3noyym Hed ul 1o Ajjoym Jayya ‘uosiad pastioyineun Aue o} I_ _ O Z<m
pasoosip o paulejal ‘paonpoidal ‘paidod jou si ) Jey) UolIPUc
0202/20 ‘ajeq gd6 zan Gd6 2N | 2o penssis! Bumeip o) pue wau Aq penissa s1BuAdod
an
. uojfeiq jsem uojeiq 1som dIHSHINL¥Vd TIONV jo Auadoid suy si Bumesp siuL
dd g paxoayd ue|d J00]4 pasodold | uedseI) suloumEH YOZ JUS9SaID) SUIOUMEH YOZ Q
sied 3y | A8y *AoBINOOE 113y} 10} UaYE} S| —L
ar :Ag umeiq “Ajuo souepInb Joj a1e Bumelp iy} uo pajesipul seale Auy Q
‘suoisiney - I ‘Jleyed WalD :SS2IpPY SNS “ONIMYNA SIHL NO¥4 FT¥IS LON 0Q
a)is UO payliaA aq 0} suoisuswId
BN 0l S 4 l 0

05

0G:L:9]eos
ue|d Joo| 1sii{ pasodoid

—

wooipag

Page 72

woolpag

—




. a17 dIHSHANLMVd TIONYA Jo bunum uijussuoo | dIHSHIANLYVd
€0 - 0£22/dd/o8 oN Bumeiq a1 10K o U0 Ko s oL PSR e o1 TIONVYE
pasoosip o paulejal ‘paonpoidal ‘paidod jou si ) Jey) UolIPUc
0202/20 ‘ajeq gd6 zan g6 2an | 2t vo ponsst st Bumesp aus pue wiawy Aq panseses siuBuidod
ai
. uojkesq 1som uoykeiq 1som dIHSHANLYVA TONYE Jo Auadoid auy 51 Bumesp siL
dd kg pax0ayo ue|d Jooj4 pesodold | Ju89saI) auloymeH YIZ JUS0S810) BUIOYMEH VOZ Q
ayeqg Y | ney *KoInooe Jjay 10§ uae) S| —L
ar :Ag umeiq “Ajuo souepinb loj a1 Bumelp siy} Uo pajedipul seale Auy Q
SuoISINSY h oL N3 E e RUET o) $s8IpPY BNS 'ONIMVHA SIHL WO¥4 FT¥OS LON 0Q
3)is Uo paylIaA aq o} suoisuawWIg

9ZSY ¥.58 020 'XB4  9¥S¥ #/G8 020 191  ArL LGN XPPIN ‘IlEYinos ‘Aempeoig 8yl 62-12

ati

SN\ 0L

0s°1L

0G:}:9]eos
ue|d 100]4 puooag pasodoid

wooipag

Page 73




ev | :ez1 1adey 001} _ :oe0S 92S¥ ¥/G8 020 :XB4  9YGY .68 00 IBL  ArL LEN XPPIN ‘lleyinos ‘Aempeoid 8yl 62-/2 an
- 0€22/dd/0g ‘oN Buimelq 17 dIHSHAN LV 119NV Jo buna uuesuoo | dIHSYINLYEV
v0 I suyouun e u 1o fjoun e wosiad posioynen e or | | YN/
pasojosip 10 pauleje) ‘paonpoidal “paidoo Jou S| 3 Jeu) UORIPUCO
0202/20 ‘o1eQ ade zan Gd6 2gn | 2 uo penssisi Bumeip auy pue wuy Aq paniesa si uBuAdod
ai
) uojhelq sepm uojheid 1sop dIHSHINLYVd 1INV Jo Auadoid auy st Bummelp siyL
dd kg pasoayd suoneas|g paesodold JUSDS8ID) UIOUMEH V9T JUS0SBID BUIOUMEH YOZ Q
ayeqg uoisiney | Aoy *Kornooe 1y} 10} uaxe} st Ayjigisuodsal o -1
A “Ajuo souepinb loj a1 Bumelp siy} Uo pajedipul seale Auy Q
. ar ‘Ag umeiq . . . y
suolsiney DL NI ETa UL o) :SSaIppY BYS ONIMV¥A SIHL WO¥4 3TVOS LON 0d
3)IS U0 paylIaA aq 0} suoisuaLlIq
SIIBIN 0L S 4 3 0

SN ¥E'1LZ=2Z/LX (Z€'2-d) X (00'+-D) X (09°+-d)

HINHOA

“NOILYINOTvD FNNTOA

0011

00L:1:9[eos

uonens|3 apig pasodoid

007D !

)

00L:L:9/eos

uonens|3 apig pasodoid

Bunsix3 yoyey
0] s|eusiep,

001:1:8]eos
uoneAs|] Jeay pasodoid

09'v~d |

001:1:8/e0s
uoneAs|J juolq pasodoid

Page 74

il I




El
DISON CLOSE

-

KINGS ROAD

Lo
N

Coppinger

T St
R
" [ce)
OOenB%
THEE :
ONeumm
B o
NH_‘nnH.m,.mmu w
OH..mmmw Nm
DFsa,m. &%@ lm
P Sa £
ORP.mA_nU =
0% &5 :
-
< .mm H
= O
o
T N
o
o g 3
7 N
N - W
AL
5 15 |3 :
oF | S &
EY —
Z &
(m)] S s
2 i
—
st | 2
3= ? ]
AW s S
S |5
’ < 3a £ 2
S & 55 15 £
© A2 2 8
< 2§ X
2 .m9 o @
: EX|E
c C
M [
S
_ o
> gEs
z . 2ED, §
g mwmus :
S mw.mmm : m
3 mmaw% : &8
LEfde 3 =
() W.nHSn g dw
< n%emna .%M.dS
. w .‘mbumnmv\./w.mumw
n as..mw.wudmw.tn
MayS%Appma
.-nlv- AHhAHWDedWH.nnu
o mw.mp,mA ¥
doumsm{\emoo
Z b cue.@8mnc03
Sa.nlu.l8 2 £8
_.nru..mewwm%ﬁmon/_
Tm&oamwmwm
§358288
e©.ﬁ|um




Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address REAR OF 1-3 COLHAM MILL ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Development: Retention and alteration of 4 shipping containers for office use (Use Class
E(g)(i)) with associated parking (Part Retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 52884/APP/2020/2090

Drawing Nos:

Date Plans Received: 07/07/2020 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/07/2020

Central & South Planning Committee - 3rd March 2021
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



\ Y0 suoisiaay 0z0zZ/L0/\E =18 EDB.LSP1BELO 1B
.\ 3N'0'SI0ABAINS-S0 MMM
[

oo ssofamns-sdomaul s E SJIY A petejnbay
“funjied paienossy WM (850 18) 800 0) Bupped 1e) woyj pue ;
9/ L #waus Jo 8% jo afueyy PUE SIBUIEIIOD JO "SON  JO Ut

Jox voneoddy | O+ BaH | syong | pieysuooeeg | enusay uines /1 oav J
passisibial 4
1ab|fews| wun iy Jueddy siofening ’ y
{02y ¥ L62) £V OSID -NOD-HINO1-020¢ 18y Bumesg palayeyn i e
0521110067} 00211 '00k L

avL /8N NOLAYHA /
‘0671 ‘s8[Bag 1S3aM AVOH TN WYHTOD -1 40 dv3d 1V ANV Ss2ippy

i

“JussUaD S Joyjne:
Yl Inoym pEINgUISIp 10 paypow ‘paonposdes ‘paydon aq 10u 1STW pue SI0ABnNg PRISLBYD SHO Jo Auedosd [enajeiul eyl s Bumelp sy sanoN wBpAdoo /

('SL'N) M3IA TVIMEVY (00S:1) NV 1d LIS (05Z1:1) NY1d NOILYDO1

Page 77

il
J

[ |
| |
oSzt 005t 00z'T ooTT o5t \
_ 7 7 _ TTTTTTTT ; _

\
_ 7:_:::_ 7 7 _ 7_:::: 7 7 _ TTITTTTTT 7 _i_:::_ // \
o wsz wo  woz wST wor WS wo  wg wg wy  we wo wy WE Wz WL W wg wr wo )




9/ T #199Us

0'L uoIsiney

0202/L0/S0 e

“Bupjied pejeroossy Ui (8sn 1g) @210 0) Bunied Jey woly pue
10 85 J0 8BUBYD PUE SIBUIEJUOD JO SON ¥ JO UOKUB}eY :Uojedlddy

108B)fews| wun Jp ueoyddy
2-NOD-¥NOL-020Z 19y Buimelg

AavZ. 8N NOLAV¥A
1S3IM avOd T1IW WVHT0D €-} 40 ¥V3d LV ANV :Ssaippy

£06.5¥188.0 :I9L
3n°09°'s108nins-sdommm
3Nn°09's10kanins-sdo@oyul

QYL 6dH | syong | playsuooeag | enuany uines £}

siofaning

paispeyn m

< | EXI)

‘ouiouos Kiowany Jouwied

SMd:

SIY Ag parenbay

NOILYOO1
SY3ANIVLNOD
a3sododd

oSzt
i i i i:::j
woS w

7 7
wo wot

wST

005:T
7 i:::j

wot WS

7 7 7
wo

we

SU INOYIM PBINGUISIP 10 PaYIPOL ‘peonpoidas ‘paide oq Jou SNW PuE SI0KBAINS PeISHEYD SO Jo Auedoid [enjosiisiul ay; st Bumesp siyL :3080N 1BAdoD

“Juesuod m,ho:_ﬂj

'ISN ONIMYVd 04 ANV LOIM3d3a
=+ 3SN ANV ONILSIX3-3dd

¢N0SZ / 1 301440 19 ~31OAD
¢INOO0L-0G / 3DVdS | 301440 19 - ONIMHVd dvO

O 3718V1 ¢ 1dVd NV1d TvOO
‘SQAUVANVYLS ONDREV

(00Z:1) Nv1d 3LIS

NN

SR

=

N
mrReaEESe

SRS

R

N
RS

Page 78

MO

00z T

7::::; 7 7 7
wo

T

we

oSt
7 7 7

wo




0} :uoIsiAey 0202/L0/S0 e

9/ € #199Us

“Bunied pejeroossy Y (8sn 1g) #au0 0} Bunlied Jed woy pue

Jo 8s Jo 8buByD puE SIBUIEIUOD JO "SON ¥ JO UojUB}eY :uohedliddy

108B)fews| wun Jp ueoyddy
£-N0D-¥NOL-020Z 19y Bumelg

AavZ. 8N NOLAV¥A

1S3IM avOd T1IW WVHT0D €-} 40 ¥V3d LV ANV :Ssaippy

£06.5¥188.0 :I9L
3N°09°s10AoAINs-sdoMmm ‘wieyds Aoy Jouiied
3Nn°09's10kanins-sdo@oyul
@Yl 6dH | s%ong | pieysucoeag | snusay unes 2| o4avl
pauasiBos
si0faning ’
passueyd

00z T

00T:T

4hig3 216000

A\

“Jussu09 s Joyine
S INoYIM PBINGUISIP 10 PayIPoW ‘peonpoidas ‘paideo 8q Jou SN Pue s10AeAINS PaIBHEYD SO 0 Apedoid [enjosiielul au) st BUIMEIP SIYL BION EuEaS//

wo woz wST  WoT  wS wo

wg w9 w? we wo wy we wz

wt

wo

wo

Page 79




0} :uoIsiAey 0202/L0/S0 e

\\

“Bupjied pejeroossy Ui (8sn 1g) @210 0) Bunied Jey woly pue
10 85 J0 8BUBYD PUE SIBUIEJUOD JO SON ¥ JO UOKUB}eY :Uojedlddy

9/ #199Us

toeffews| wun I Jueonddy
#-NOD-UNDL-0202 oy Buimeiq

Q. L8N NOLAVYA

1SIM QVOY TN WVHTOO €+ 40 v LV ANV'] :SS2ippy

(0zy x 262) £V OSID

‘011 mw_muw

£06.5¥188.0 :I9L
3n°09°'s10aAns-sdommm
3Nn°09's10kanins-sdo@oyul
QYL 6dH | s¥ong | piaysuocoeag | enueny uines /|
sS4 o>m>‘_3m
nw‘_wtmso

31IS ONIMYVd
101713¥3a ONILIX3-3dd

JussU0D S Jouine
S INoYIM PBINGUISIP 10 PayIPoW ‘peonpoidas ‘paideo 8q Jou SN Pue s10AeAINS PaIBHEYD SO 0 Apedoid [enjosiielul au) st BUIMEIP SIYL BION Eu_taoo//

(0o0L:1) 3QIS ONILIX3

/= .

N

301440 NV1d N3dO

(00L:1) ¥v3Y ONILIX3

TIVL WE'Z TIVM 30N

o
(e}
Q
O
. o ®
T ==
2 72
W
(001:1) 3aIS ONLLIX3 (001:1) LNO¥H ONILIX3 e __
= 7 , g |t
|
® U\ = . 7@ — ] \ N
VLI AILNIVd AJHO (2 i
oSzTT 005:T 007:T ooT:T oSt
i i i T i i i T i i i T i i i [T i i i [T
wosS wSe wo  woz wST  WOT WS wo  wg w9 w wz wo  w¥ we wz wt wo  wz wt wo K




\\

9/G #199Us

0} :uoIsiAey 0202/L0/S0 e

£06.5¥188.0 :I9L

(ozy x 262) £V OSIO
05Z1:1008:}'00Z:1'00}:1
‘0G| :S9[eag

“Bupjied pejeroossy Ui (8sn 1g) @210 0) Bunied Jey woly pue
10 85 J0 8BUBYD PUE SIBUIEJUOD JO SON ¥ JO UOKUB}eY :Uojedlddy

toeffews| wun I Jueonddy
S-NOD-UNDL-0207 oy Buimeiq

Q. L8N NOLAVYA

1SIM QVOY TN WVHTOO €+ 40 v LV ANV'] :SS2ippy

3n°09°'s10aAns-sdommm
3Nn°09's10kanins-sdo@oyul

siofkaning
paiauey)

QUL 6dH | png | pieysuooesg | snusay E:&

(00L:1) 3AIS A3ISOdO¥Ud

(001:1) 3AIS A3SOdOud

‘ouieyds powpny Joued

oavi

\\

SU INOYIM PBINGUISIP 10 PaYIPOL ‘peonpoidal ‘paide 8q Jou SNW PuE SI0KBAINS PeISHEYD SO JO Auedoid [enjosisiul 8y st Bumesp siyL :3080N 1BAdoD

(001:1) 40014 A3SOdO¥d

O

p—
N

331440 NV'1d NIdO

(001:1) ¥v3Y A3sSOdoud

TIVL WE'Z TIVM 30N

(001:1) LNOY4 A3S0OdONd

SONIAav1o ¥3giniL

2

Page 81

0592

0ez

woz wST  WoT  wS wo




By} JNoyIM PAINQUISIP JO PalIPoW ‘paonpoidal paidod aq 10U 1SN pue SI0AeAINS paisLeyd SO Jo Auadoid [enjoaliejul au) s1 Bumelp siy) :0onoN 1yBuAdoD
“Bupjied pejeroossy Ui (8sn 1g) @210 0) Bunied Jey woly pue i 0o siokenins-sdo@ojul
9/9#188Us joesn jo mm:m:o pUE SIBUIBJUOD JO 'SON ¥ JO UONUSIaY uonedlddy ¥} 6dH | ¥ng | praysuooeag | anuany uneg /|

0} :uoIsiAey 0202/L0/S0 e £06.5¥188.0 :I9L “Juasuod sJoyne
3n°09°'s10aAns-sdommm

1096)fews| win J ueolddy siofaning

(0z¥ x £62) £V OSI® 9-NOD-¥NOL-020Z 19y Bumelg paiapeyd
05Z1:1°00:}°00Z:1'00} 1 Qv 28N NOLAVYA
‘0g:} 'S9IBos 1S3IM QYO TN WVHTOO €-} 40 ¥Y3Y LV ANV :SSe.ppy

ONIAAv1O 3L AFHO / FLIOVHHLNY A3SO0d0rd

(001:1) LNO¥4 d3S0OdO¥d (001:1) 3AIS A3SOdoud

2]

092
o0ez

J0O0Ad ANV SMOANIM
OAd AFYO / ALIDVHHLNY Ad3S0d0¥d

woz  wST wot




STATION APP

The De Burgh
Arms Hotel

1t0 28
Pullman
Court

ElSub S\tjas
De\aﬁofd o

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary REAR OF 1-3 OF HILLINGDON

For identification purposes onl COLHAM MILL ROAD Residents Services

| paeee WEST DRAYTON e Coranining Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 52884/APP/2020/2090 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant b
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: s
© Crown copyright and database
o 2020 rcnance Survey Central & Sathe 83 | February 2021|  THILLINGDON




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 26-28 Dowding Road, Hillingdon - 75328/APP/2020/3570
	3570 Report
	LP

	7 26A Hawthorne Crescent, West Drayton - 74982/APP/2020/592
	592 Report
	LP

	8 Rear of 1-3 Colham Mill Road, West Drayton - 52884/APP/2020/2090
	2090 Report
	LP

	9 Enforcement Report
	 PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee
	Cover for Booklet - 3rd March 21 
	3570 ST
	592 ST
	FS
	Location Plan & Block Plan
	Existing Floor Plans and Existing Elevations
	Proposed Floor Plan
	Proposed Second Floor Plan
	Proposed Shed and Proposed Shed Elevation
	Proposed Elevations
	LP

	2090 ST


